IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA TO J. WHITE APR 25 -1 PETER F. PIERPONT and MARY J. PIERPONT, Husband and Wife, Petitioners, v. LEE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, Respondent. Respondent.

A PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY RE VIE W OF THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL RENDERED IN CASE NO. 95-04657

PETITIONERS" JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

William M. Powell
Fla. Bar No. 0343994
Co-Counsel for the Petitioners
WILLIAM M. POWELL, P.A.
2002 Del Prado Blvd., Suite 105
Cape Coral, FL 33990
(941) 458-0220

INTRODUCTION

This is a proceeding for discretionary review of the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal concerning the issue of attorneys' fees in an eminent domain case. This Jurisdictional Brief is submitted on behalf of the Petitioners, PETER F. PIERPONT and MARY J. PIERPONT, who will be referred to herein as "the Landowners." The Respondent, LEE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, was the condemner in the eminent-domain action, and will be referred to as "the County" or "Lee County." There is an Appendix to this Jurisdictional Brief, and reference to it will be indicated by "APP" followed by the pertinent page number or numbers.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE & FACTS

The principal issue addressed in the second district's 2-1 decision is the proper application of Section 73.092 of the Florida Statutes. The statute governs the award of attorneys' fees in eminent domain actions, and says that a trial court "shall award attorney's fees based solely on the benefits achieved for the client." The term "benefits" is defined to be the difference between the judgment or settlement amount and the first "written offer" made by the condemner. So under the statute, the attorneys' fee is calculated solely as a percentage of the difference between the judgment/settlement amount and the first "written offer" made by the condemner.'

In the instant case there was no dispute as to the judgment/settlement amount, <u>i.e.</u>, the top number in the benefit calculation. Rather, the dispute centered around the term "written offer," <u>i.e.</u>, the lower number in the calculation. The trial court held that the good-faith estimate made by the County in its declaration of taking was a "written offer" under the statute, and therefore used the good-faith estimate as the bottom number in the calculation of benefits and hence attorneys' fees.

The second district's majority opinion disagreed with the trial court's assessment, and held that the Legislature did not intend the good-faith estimate to be considered a "written offer" under the statute. (APP 2) The majority recognized by its "but see" reference to a fifth district case that another district court had applied the statute differently. (APP 3)

The majority decision held that the first ('written offer'' made by the County within the meaning of the statute was the letter from the assistant county attorney sent to the Landowners'

^{&#}x27;Prior to 1994 the statute required the court to give "greatest weight" to the benefit achieved, and prior to 1990 benefit was only one of six factors to be considered. So the importance of benefit has steadily increased to where it is now the **only** factor. However, the definition of "benefit" has been unchanged since 1990, So the shifting in emphasis has not affected how the term is to be interpreted, since the statutory definition has remained unchanged; however, the shifting in emphasis does increase the importance of the definition, since benefit is now the **only** determiner of the fee.

counsel three months after the proceedings were initiated, offering to settle the matter for a sum considerably greater than the County's good-faith estimate. (APP 1-2) The majority also rejected the Landowners' contention that the letter offer was not a valid and binding offer because the County had not complied with the Sunshine Law. The rejection was based on two conclusions by the majority: first, that the County's pre-suit authorization to its attorney to buy property "not to exceed 20% over the highest appraised valued obtained by Lee County" authorized the settlement offer, and was not a delegation of decision-making authority to a staff person; and second, that the Landowners "are without standing to raise the bona fides of the offer since they never sought to challenge the authority of the county attorney to make the offer until the issue on attorney's fees arose," (APP 3)

Judge Blue dissented from the majority's decision "because I believe that the good faith estimate of value should operate as an offer" under the statute. (APP 3) The dissent held that the constitutional considerations at play in the awardation of attorneys' fees in eminent domain actions compelled the conclusion that a good-faith estimate is an "offer" under the statute, otherwise a landowner could be deprived of his constitutional right to fees by the machinations of the condemning authority.* The dissent also observed that the fifth district had seemingly held contrary to the majority in a decision that will be discussed below, (APP 3)

The Landowners filed a Motion for Rehearing (APP 5-25), but it was denied. (APP 26) This timely petition for discretionary review followed.³

²The dissent observed that under the majority's holding the condemner could simply wait until well into the litigation to make its first offer, and even though this offer was much greater than the good-faith estimate, the landowner would be deprived of his constitutional right to fees that were legitimately incurred in obtaining full compensation. (APP 4)

³It should be noted that the second district has relied upon its holding in the instant case to reverse two other attorneys' fees awards, and copies of these decisions are included in the Appendix. (APP 27-28) This Court will be asked to assume jurisdiction in the two subsequent cases under the principle of Jollie v. State, 405 SO.2D 418 (Fla. 1981).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Several jurisdictional bases are evoked by the second district's decision. The majority opinion expressly affects a class of constitutional or state officers, since it speaks to the duties and obligations of a county commission under both Section 73.092 and the Sunshine Law (as well as their constitutional counterparts). The second basis for this Court's discretionary jurisdiction is that the majority decision conflicts with: 1) the fifth district decisions holding that a good-faith estimate is a written offer under the statute; 2) with this Court's decisions holding that fees are constitutionally "assured" in eminent-domain actions; 3) with the decisions holding that the setting of fees in an eminent-domain action is a judicial function that may not be usurped "directly or indirectly" by the legislature; and 4) with the <u>Conner</u> decision from the fourth district, where it was held that the settlement of an eminent-domain case was not binding upon the county because it was not approved at a noticed, public meeting. The final basis for this Court's jurisdiction is that the majority opinion construes two provisions of the Florida Constitution, <u>i.e.</u>, those 1) requiring the payment of full compensation and 2) requiring that all public decisions of a county commission will be made in the Sunshine.

ARGUMENT

This case is unique in that it involves the duties and obligations of public officials arising from two constitutional provisions and two enabling statutes. Attorney's fees are a component of the landowner's entitlement to "full compensation" under Article X, Section 6 of the Florida Constitution. The Sunshine Law has now been memorialized in Article I, Section 24 of the Florida Constitution. The application of the statutes in question in deciding the duties and obligations of local-government officials is therefore imbued with constitutional considerations. A. The majority decision expressly affects a class of constitutional or state officers.

This Court has discretion to review a decision that "expressly affects a class of constitutional or state officers."⁴ In Spradlev v. State, 293 SO.2D 697 (Fla. 1974) this Court set forth the jurisdictional parameters of such discretionary review:

To vest this Court with certiorari jurisdiction, a decision must directly and, in some way, exclusively affect the duties, powers, validity, formation, termination or regulation of a particular class of constitutional or state officers. This may be a decision in a case in which the class, or some of its members, is directly involved as a party. It may also be in a case in which no member of the class is a party

(Emphasis added.⁵)

So jurisdiction would exist in the instant case if the second district's decision directly affects the "powers, duties, validity, formation, termination or regulation" of county commissions.

The second district's decision certainly meets this criterion. It affects the constitutional duty of local government bodies to pay full compensation for property taken, and it affects their powers and duties in making written offers in eminent-domain cases. Much the same this is true of the portion of the majority decision dealing with the Sunshine Law. The majority held that the county commission could delegate its power to settle lawsuits to its attorney, and this holding affects the powers and duties of a county commission. The majority decision also holds that the Sunshine Law was not offended by this procedure, and this is still another pronouncement that affects the powers and duties of county commissions.

The few decisions on this jurisdictional provision support jurisdiction in the instant case. In <u>Tyson v. Lanier</u>, 156 **SO.2D** 833 (Fla. 1963) the trial court interpreted a statute relating to the taxation

⁴This Court has held that county commissions are "constitutional officers" within the meaning of the constitutional provision. Pinellas County v. Nelson, 362 SO.2D 279 (Fla. 1978).

⁵Henceforth it should be assumed that all emphasis has been added unless otherwise noted.

of agricultural lands. The district court reversed in a 2-1 decision, interpreting the statute differently than the trial court did. This Court acknowledged that the interpretation of the statute had constitutional implications (just as in the instant case), and held that this was just the sort of case that was appropriate for Supreme Court review. Justice Terre11 said that jurisdiction under the provision was "clear", because the interpretation of the statute affected the powers and duties of county tax assessors. The same of course is true in the instant case. Here the second district split 2-1 on the interpretation of a statute with constitutional implications. Here too the second district's majority decision affects the powers and duties of county commissions. See also Behr v. Beil, 665 SO.2D 1055 (Fla. 1996)(jurisdiction under this provision from district court decision requiring public defenders to act as standby counsel in criminal cases). So it is respectfully submitted that this Court has jurisdiction to review the second district's majority decision.

B. The majority decision expressly and directly conflicts with decisions from other district courts of appeal and this Court.

This Court's decisions show that conflict can be demonstrated in either of two ways: first, conflict exists where a rule of law is announced that is contrary to the rule of law set forth in another decision; or second, conflict exists where the same rule of law is applied to similar facts in two cases and different results are reached, <u>See. e.g., Mancini v. State</u>, 3 12 SO.2D 732 (Fla. 1975). Both types of conflict are presented by the Second District's majority opinion.

1. The fifth district decisions.

Both the majority and dissent acknowledge that the fifth district has construed the good-faith estimate as the "written offer" under the statute in <u>Seminole County v</u>, <u>Rollingwood Apts</u>, 678 SO.2D 370 (Fla.5th DCA 1996). There the trial court awarded a fee based in part on the benefit achieved. The case settled for \$625,000, and the county "deposited \$172,200 as its good faith

estimate of value for these parcels." The fifth district agreed that the benefit was \$452,800, representing the difference between the settlement and "the *initial offer/good faith deposit.*" The fifth district reversed the fee award as being too great, but the important point for present purposes is that the court held that the "first written offer" under Section 73.092 was the good-faith estimate.

There is a later fifth district decision, rendered after the instant case was decided, that also explicitly holds that the good-faith estimate is a written offer under the statute. In <u>Seminole County</u>. <u>v. Cumberland Farms</u>, 688 SO.2D 372 (Fla.5th DCA 1997) the court noted that the good-faith estimate was \$132,100, and that the case was settled for \$265,000. In a footnote the court explained that the benefit under the statute was "\$132,900, and explained the calculation as follows:

"Benefit" Calculation	
Settlement Amount	\$265,000
Written offer by county	- <u>\$132,000</u>
Difference (benefit)	\$132,900

So once again the court held that the good-faith estimate was a "written offer" within the meaning of the statute. See also Seminole County v. Delco, 676 SO.2D 451 (Fla.5th DCA 1996)(court accepted determination that the good-faith estimate was the "written offer").

So the fifth district's holdings that the condemner's good-faith estimate was a "written offer" under the statute is diametrically opposed to the majority decision in the instant case. If the second district's logic were applied to the facts of the fifth district cases, the results would have been different. In the final analysis this is the best test for whether conflict exists, and the application of this test shows that there is express conflict that gives this Court jurisdiction.

2. This Court's **<u>Quanstrom</u>** and <u>Platt</u> decisions.

It is well accepted that attorneys' fees in eminent domain cases are constitutionally compelled by the full-compensation clause of the Constitution. The real detriment of the second district's interpretation of Section 73.092 is that it will allow condemners in many instances to avoid paying the attorney' fees required by the Constitution. If the good-faith estimate is not a "written offer," and since the statute puts no time limit upon when (or if) the condemner must make an offer, the following scenario is almost certain to occur in the wake of the second district's holding: the condemner could wait until the case is tried and the landowner has made his best case (with the aid of counsel); and then while the jury is out the condemner could, for the first time, offer what the property is worth. The landowner would have no choice but to accept this offer (and in fact counsel would have an ethical obligation to advise his/her client to take it); but under the second district's holding the landowner would be entitled to no **attorneys fees** for the perhaps years of litigation he was forced into by the condemner's actions. In this scenario the landowner would be denied attorneys' fees not because they were undeserved, but simply because of the machinations of the condemner made possible by the second district's holding, and the reason the trial court and the dissent interpreted the statute to mean that a good-faith estimate is a written offer.

In several important decision on attorneys fees this Court has held that a landowner is *constitutionally guaranteed* an attorneys' fee in an eminent-domain proceeding, and thus there is no reason to allow a multiplier that would be applicable if a fee were not guaranteed. In <u>Standard Guar. Ins. Co. v. Quanstrom</u>, 555 SO.2D 828 (Fla. 1990) this Court said:

Further, in eminent domain cases, the purpose of the award of attorney's fees is to assure that the property owner is made whole when the condemning authority takes the owner's property. In these cases, the attorney is assured of a fee when the action commences.

This Court said the same thing in In re Estate of Platt, 586 SO.2D 328 (Fla. 1991). Yet the majority opinion in the instant case interprets Section 73.092 in such a way that a landowner would *not* be

"assured" of an attorneys' fee in an eminent-domain action.⁶ The second district's majority decision therefore expressly conflicts with this Court's statements in <u>Quanstrom and Platt</u>.

3. The cases holding that the legislature may not conclusively establish the amount of attorneys' fees in eminent-domain cases.

In <u>Dept. of Ag. & Cons. Services v. Bonanno</u>, 568 SO.2D 24 (Fla. 1990) this Court said, "It is true that the legislature may not set conclusive values for property taken for a public purpose because the determination of just compensation is a judicial function." The Court went on to hold that the statute in question did not violate the principle, since it provided that the presumptive value "may be rebutted." The Court noted in footnote 5 that the presumptive attorneys' fees established by the statute was also saved by similar statutory language allowing the presumptive fee to be rebutted by the landowner. But here the second district has interpreted Section 73.092 to establish *an irrebutable* presumption of attorney's fees (and hence full compensation) in a eminent-domain action. So the second district's decision flies in the face of this Court's pronouncement in Bonanno.

In <u>Crigler v, DOT</u>, 535 SO.2D 329 (Fla.lst DCA 1988) the court said, "[I]t is true that attorney's fees are part of the full compensation guaranteed by the constitution. Further, the Legislature may not diminish the concept of full compensation as defined by the courts." Here the second district's interpretation of the statute allows the legislature "to diminish the concept of full compensation," i.e., attorneys' fees, and thus conflicts with <u>Crigler</u>.

4. The <u>Conner</u> decision

In <u>Broward County v. Conner</u>, 660 SO.2D 288 (Fla.4th DCA 1995) a settlement was reached by the attorneys for the county and landowner in an eminent-domain action. The county then refused

⁶This fear is made real in one of the cases that were reversed by the second district on the basis of the majority decision. In Lee County v. A & G Investments the result of the second district's interpretation of the statute will be that the landowner will not receive attorney's fees. (APP 15,27)

to perform the settlement, and the issue for the fourth district was whether the county should be required to. Judge Klein said that if the county had entered into a binding settlement with the landowner, it would have had to have done so at a noticed public meeting, and "it necessarily follows that the actions of the county's attorneys could not bind the county to specific performance of a contract in the absence of proper commission approval." Here the second district, under very similar circumstances, held that the Sunshine Law was *not* violated. So there is express conflict between the majority's decision and the Conner decision.

C. The majority decision expressly construes two provisions of the Florida Constitution.

There are two other types of cases that can support this Court's discretionary jurisdiction, those being cases that expressly declare valid a state statute or those that expressly construe a provision of the Constitution. The second district's majority decision does not expressly declare valid a state statute; rather, it is the Landowners' belief that the majority interprets the statute in such a way as to make it invalid. But in any event, this Court does not have jurisdiction on this basis.

But this Court does have discretionary jurisdiction, it is submitted, because of the unique constitutional angle of this case. It is clear that Section 73.092 was enacted by the legislature in fulfillment of a landowner's right to full compensation under the Constitution. <u>See, e.g., Crigler v.</u> <u>DOT. supra;rDOT vi BenIHill Griffin,Inc., 636 SO.2D 825 (Fla.2nd DCA 1994).</u> t i o n 286.011 is coextensive with the constitutional Sunshine Law found in Article I, Section 24. In <u>Monroe Countv v. Pigeon Kev Hist. Park</u>, 647 SO.2D 857 (Fla.3rd DCA 1994) the court noted that the statute and constitutional provision were "virtually identical," therefore "we find no reason to construe the [constitutional] amendment differently than the Supreme Court has construed the statute." In Law & Info. Services v. Riviera Beach, 670 SO.2D 1014 (Fla.4th DCA 1996) the court said, "[W]e see no reason to construe the constitutional provision differently from the statute."

So the two statutes interpreted by the second district majority opinion are unique, in that these statutes directly enable corresponding provisions of the Florida Constitution. In a real and palpable sense an interpretation of Section 73.092 construes a provision of the Florida Constitution, since the statute enables the constitutional provision. Similarly, an interpretation of Section 286.011 construes the constitutional Sunshine Law provision. Because of these unique circumstances, the second district's majority opinion construes two provisions of the Florida Constitution, and therefore creates still another basis for this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

It is submitted that this Court does have discretionary jurisdiction under Article V, Section 3 of the Constitution to review the second district's majority decision, and it is therefore respectfully submitted that this Court should exercise that jurisdiction.