045

## IN THE SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE MAY 20 1997

PETER F. PIERPONT and MARY	′ J.
PIERPONT, Husband and Wife,	

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

Petitioners,

VS.

Supreme Court Case No. 90,357

LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision of the State of Florida,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT LEE COUNTY'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES G. YAEGER LEE COUNTY ATTORNEY 2115 Second Street Post Office Box 398 Fort Myers, Florida 33902 (941) 335-2236

By: John J. Renner Assistant County Attorney Florida Bar No. 373435

### **TABLEOFCONTENTS**

	Page

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Second District applied Section 73.092, Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994) to the facts of this case and merely announced as a rule of law that the statute shall be

applied according to the plain and unambiguous language used by the legislature. The Second District also rejected Petitioners' argument that the written offer authorized by the county commission at a duly held public meeting was violative of the Sunshine Law. The decision did not announce a rule of law in conflict with a decision of this court or another district court. Nor did the decision construe any constitutional provisions. Finally, the Second District's decision did not expressly affect a class of constitutional or state officers.

#### ARGUMENT

# THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AFFECT A CLASS OF CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATE OFFICERS.

Petitioner argues that the Court has jurisdiction to review the Second District decision on the basis it "expressly affects a class of constitutional or state officers" since it directly affects the "powers, duties, validity, formation, termination or regulation" of county commissions. Petitioner cites Pinellas County v. Nelson. 362 So.2d 279 (Fla. 1978) asserting that this Court "held that county commissions are 'constitutional officers',." within the meaning of Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1968).

Contrary to Petitioners' assertion, this Court did not hold that county commissions were "constitutional officers" within the meaning of Article V, Section 3(b)(3) in Pinellas County v. Nelson, supra. That case involved a dispute between the Pinellas County Commission and the Supervisor of Elections of Pinellas County over the latter's budget request. This Court took jurisdiction because the decision of the District Court would affect a class of constitutional officers. LEE COUNTY submits that the class of constitution officers affected was Supervisors of Elections, not county commissions as claimed by

Petitioners, which served as the basis for jurisdiction in Nelson, supra. The rationale for this reading of Nelson, supra. being a county commission is a collegial body. While individual county commissioners may be "constitutional officers", the county commission is a collegial body, not an "officer,"

Likewise, Petitioners' arguments that the Second District's decision deals with the full compensation clause and the Sunshine Law and, therefore, will affect "constitutional and state officers" is erroneous for the same reason.

Both Article I, Section 24 and Section 286.011, Fla. Stat. (1995) apply to meetings of public collegial bodies. By definition, they do not apply to individual constitutional or state officers. No power or duty of any constitutional or state officer would be directly affected by the Second District's decision relating to Petitioners' Sunshine Law argument.

The power of eminent domain is vested in the state and delegated by the state legislature to numerous governmental bodies. The power of eminent domain is not vested in, nor delegated to, individual constitutional or state officers. Thus, while the Second District's decision may apply to the determination of attorney fees governmental bodies may be required to pay, it will not affect the powers or duties of constitutional or state officers.

# THE DECISION DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH ANY DECISION OF A DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR THIS COURT.

Pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3), this court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of this Court on the same question of law.

This express and direct conflict on the same question of law requires an irreconcilable conflict of decisions, Williams v. Duaaan, 153 So.2d 726 (Fla. 1963). As noted in Niemann v. Niemann, 312 So.2d 733 (Fla. 1975), it is conflict of decisions rather than conflict in opinions which provides the basis for jurisdiction. The inquiry in this case is whether the Second District's decision announced a principle of law in conflict with a principle of law announced by the Fifth District or this Court. N & L Auto Parts Company v. Doman, 117 So.2d 410 (Fla. 1960).

1. The decisions of the Fifth District Court of Appeal do not expressly and directly conflict with the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal.

Petitioners cite three (3) cases from the Fifth District and state to this Court that the Fifth District "explicitly" held that the good faith estimate of value is a written offer under Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994). In fact, there are five (5) recent cases from the Fifth District regarding eminent domain attorney's fees and in none of these cases has the Fifth District held that the good faith estimate of value is a "written offer" for purposes of determining "benefit" pursuant to Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994). On the contrary, the most recent Fifth District decision, Seminole County v. Coral Gables Federal Savings and Loan Association, 22 F.L.W. 994 (Fla. 5th DCA April 18, 1997), held Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994) constitutional and upheld an award of attorney fees based upon thirty-three (33%) percent of the "benefit" which was determined as the difference between the written offer and the amount of the settlement. This is entirely consistent with the decision of the Second District which Petitioners seek to have reviewed on the basis on conflict.

In Seminole County v. Clayton, 665 So.2d 363 (Fla. 5th DCA 1995), Seminole County v. Delco Oil. Inc., 669 So.2d 1162 (Fla. 5th DCA 1996), Seminole County v. Butler, 676 So.2d 451 (Fla. 5th DCA 1996), Seminole County v. Rollinawood Apartments Ltd., 678 So.2d 370 (Fla. 5th DCA 1996) and Seminole County v. Cumberland Farms. Inc., 688 So.2d 372 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997) the Fifth District reversed awards of attorney fees on the basis the trial court failed to calculate the fee in accordance with Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (1993). In each of these cases the Fifth District spoke about the methodology employed in the trial court and how percentages of "benefit" were added to the calculations. In not one of these cases did the Fifth District announce as a principle of law that the good faith estimate of value was a "written offer" under 73.092. The principle of law announced in each case was the trial court's methodology in calculating the fee was not in compliance with Section 73.092. In each case, the trial court's award of fees calculated using "benefit" was reversed. Since the trial court's methodology was erroneous and reversed for noncompliance with Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (1993) there was no need for the Fifth District to concern itself with whether "benefit" is to be determined with reference to the written offer or good faith estimate of value. If it was improper to employ "benefit" to calculate the fee as the trial court did, how "benefit" was determined was irrelevant in the context of these cases.

2. The decision of the Second District does not conflict with this Court's decisions in Quanstrom and Platt.

Petitioners argue the Second Districts decision directly and expressly conflicts with this Courts decisions in Standard Guar. Ins. Co. v. Quanstrom. 555 So.2d 828 (Fla. 1990)

and In re Estate of Platt, 586 So.2d 328 (Fla. 1991). According to Petitioners, Quanstrom and Platt held that attorney's fees are guaranteed in eminent domain cases regardless of the lack of merit to the landowner's claims or outcome of the case. That is not the rule of law announced in Quanstrom or **Matt**eover, what Petitioners are trying to do is challenge the constitutionality of Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994) when they did not raise this issue before either the trial court or the Second District. Petitioners argue that Quanstrom and Platt assure an award of attorney's fees in eminent domain cases as a matter of full compensation, therefore, if the benefit is zero and Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994) requires a fee award of \$0 based upon a percentage of the benefit, Section 73.092 is unconstitutional. This argument is flawed in two regards. First, Quanstrom and <u>Platt</u> did not hold that full compensation requires an award of attorney fees in every eminent domain case. Secondly, the full compensation clause guarantees full compensation and nothing more. Thus, if a condemnor offered full compensation to the landowner but the landowner refuses and unsuccessfully pursues pecuniary gain in excess of full compensation, the public is not obligated under full compensation to pay the landowner's attorney fees. Crigler v. State, Dept. of Trans., 535 So.2d 329 (Fla. 1st DCA) 1988) is not in conflict with the Second District's decision and refutes Petitioner's argument that full compensation requires payment of attorneys' fees in all eminent domain cases.

Likewise, Petitioners citation to Dept. of Aar. & Consumer Serv. v. Bonanno, 568 So.2d 24 (Fla. 1990) to support the argument that Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994) is an unconstitutional usurpation of a judicial function is inappropriate since Petitioners never challenged the constitutionality of Section 73.092 before the trial court or the Second

District. On the contrary, the fee award to Petitioners which they sought to protect before the Second District was made pursuant to Section 73.092 Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1994).

Petitioners' attempt to establish conflict between the Second District's decision and Broward County v. Conner, 660 So.2d, 288 (Fla. 4th DCA 1995) must also fail. In Conner, a landowner sought to convert settlement negotiations with Broward County's lawyers into a contract binding upon Broward County and enforceable by specific performance. After holding the agreement was not enforceable because it violates the statute of frauds, the Fourth District noted that such an agreement would violate the Sunshine Law because it was entered into "in the absence of proper commission approval" Conner, supra. at 290. The Court noted that the trial court determined the county entered into a contract by virtue of the actions of its attorneys without formal action by the county commission at a public meeting. The Second District's decision is consistent with the Conner decision and not in conflict. In our case, as the Second District noted, the county commission, at public meetings, specifically authorized the County Attorney to acquire this property and to make written offers not to exceed twenty (20%) percent of the highest appraised value. Unlike Conner, this case did not involve any contracts or offers not authorized by the county commission at a duly held public meeting.

## THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT DID NOT CONSTRUE A PROVISION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

In order for Petitioner to properly invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution, and Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, they must establish that the decision of the

Second District Court of Appeal expressly construed a provision of the State or Federal Constitution. This they did not and cannot do, because the District Court did not expressly construe any constitutional provision.

Both Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1968) and Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) require that the District Court decision "expressly construe" a constitutional provision. Even prior to the amendment of Article V and the adoption of Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) in 1980, the notion that Supreme Court jurisdiction may be based upon an "inherent" construction of a constitutional provision was rejected. Oale v. Pepin, 273 So.2d 391 (Fla. 1973); Dvkman v. State. 294 So.2d 633 (Fla. 1973). As this Court stated in Armstrona v. Citv of Tampa, 106 So.2d 407 (Fla. 1958) and again in Olge, supra at 392, a decision does not construe a constitutional provision unless it undertakes:

", , , to explain, define, or otherwise eliminate existing doubts arising from the language of terms of the constitutional provision."

"Construction" of the Constitution contemplates an interpretation of the meaning of the language of a constitutional provision and there is no express construction of a constitutional provision if the lower court merely applied a recognized, clear-cut provision of the Constitution to the facts. Armstrong, supra.

"Jurisdiction does not arise by virtue of the applicability of plain and unambiguous constitutional provisions to a given state of facts."

Armstrong, supra at 410. This Court emphatically pointed out this distinction again in Roias v. State, 288 So.2d 234, 236 (Fla. 1973):

"Applying is not synonymous with construing; the former is NOT a basis for our jurisdiction, while the express construction of a constitutional provision is." (Emphasis in original.)

A review of the Second District Court of Appeal's opinion shows that the court did not expressly construe any constitutional provision. Nowhere in the opinion does the court undertake to explain, define, or interpret any language or terms of the State Constitution. A cursory review of the decision reveals that there was no interpretation of the meaning of any constitutional provision.

### CONCLUSION

Petitioner's attempt to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under various grounds must be denied.